Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Dale Dunham Robert Stulac Vicky Lufrano Russ Siegman Robert Garcia
November 15, 2023

Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.
District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705
(775) 267-2805

MISSIONSTATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the quality of life of its resident families and to maintain and operate those
Jacilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

[t is the intent of the Board of Trustees to protect the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees’ wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order to ensure that every citizen desiring to speak before the Board has the opportunity to express his/her
opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any remarks or
gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To
file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W_,
Washington, D.C. 20250-94 10, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711, The TTY or HCO
(hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the District Office in writing at 3394 James Lee Park Road,
Carson City, NV 89705, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance.

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on IHGID’s website at: www.indianhillsnevada.com




AGENDA

6:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting

L. Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to [HGID. The public may comment on any item that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitied to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
taking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

4. Approval of Agenda-Chairman
Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined
for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

e Motion
s Vote
5. Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative
2. Water
3. Wastewater
b. District Accountant Report
c. Engineer Report

d. Attorney Report

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public
e (Close Public Comment

6. Discussion only regarding the District’s monthly water and sewer rates.
(District General Manager, Chris Johnson)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

7. Discussion and possible action regarding General Manager Chris Johnson’s annual
performance evaluation.
(Chairman, Dunham)

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
¢ (Close Public Comment



10.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the October 18, 2023, Board
Meeting.

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence

Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such an item or topic
be placed on a future agenda.

Adjournment

This agenda is posted at www.indianhillsnevada.com, hitps://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:

District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road

As of 8:30 A M., November 9, 2023, z

ML/

\k )



AGENDA ITEM 5a.

Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative

2. Water
3. Wastewater



General Manager Report November 15, 2023

Our new webpage is now live! It is exciting to have a webpage that is viewable on all platforms,
as well as one that is in compliance with Federal, State, and local ADA laws and regulations.

We have been working to get the South Sunridge data logger speed sign active, and should
have it completed by the time of the meeting. The subscription for the sign was never renewed.
It will cost the District $500 per year for the sign, but viewing the available data | believe it will
be a worthwhile investment.

The Trunk or Treat went well, and | want to extend a big thank you to the trustees that came
out and supported the community in this. We had a very small number of participants, so the
additional help was greatly appreciated.

The final community cleanup went very well. Again, we filled the 40-yard dumpsters to above
the rim. This event removed 120 yards of trash, 80 yards of green waste, and 40 yards of metal
and appliances from the district.

I met with general managers from multiple districts in both the Managers Meeting as well as
the Coalition Meeting. We are working to create a coalition that allows us to take advantage of
larger grants and getting better bids by collaborating on projects.

I am currently looking into the Conserve Nevada grant that has $3M available. There are some
specific requirements, but | will get what | can.

In honor of Veteran’s Day this past weekend, | want to say THANK YOU to all of the veterans
that have served our country and express my sincere appreciation for their service.
Administrative Report November 2023
The ACH program continues to be well received. Residents are thankful the district has
implemented this option for payments. We currently have 552, 27.326% of residents taking
advantage of automatic withdrawal. We continue to receive requests and new authorization
forms daily.

In October we sent out thirty-two past-due bills resulting in zero disconnections.

The district’s Gazebo reservations are still in full swing for the summer months with four
reservations for James Lee Park Gazebo in September. One Gazebo reservation North Sunridge
Park and one for South Sunridge Park.

We had nine new account sign ups in October. These are homes that have changed ownership.

On October 19 and 20'™ | attended Pool Pacts Annual HR conference. This is always a great
conference with exciting speakers, law updates and great networking opportunities.



On Thursday, November 16, 2023, supervisors will attend a Building Blocks Through Effective
Leadership training hosted by Pool Pact.

Our Annual Trunk or Treat was on Saturday, October 28, 2023, from 3:00-5:00PM.
Unfortunately, the number of participants to hand out candy was down this year, but we had a
great number of kids attend. They all enjoyed themselves and got plenty of candy, so it was a
success.

Indian Hills General Improvement District’s office is now a proud drop off location for Austin’s
House donations. Austin’s House provides emergency shelter and compassionate care for up to
ten children between the ages of birth to 18. The generosity of our community sustains Austin’s
House. Donations will be accepted now through December 19, 2023. For more information on
this wonderful cause please stop by the District’s office or contact Austin’s House directly at
775-267-6711 or visit their website at www.austinshouse.org.

Each year the District has a nonperishable Community food drive. The drop off location is at the
District office, this year we are collecting food for the Carson Valley Community Food Closet.
The Food Closet hasbeen serving Douglas County since 1989 providing assistance with
groceries to those in need. During the holiday season, they provide dinners at Thanksgiving and
Christmas for over 1,000 families. Indian Hills will be accepting donations now through
December 19, 2023. For more information about the Carson Valley Community Food Closet
please visit their website directly at www.carsonvalleycommunityfoodcloset.org,

Indian Hills will also be participating in Project Santa Claus. Project Santa Claus provides
Christmas gifts to hundreds of children in need in Douglas County. The Department of Social
Services and other agencies along with the Food Closet work together to qualify the families
who will depend on Project Santa Claus to have a joyous Christmas. Each child 17 and under in
these families, have two angels placed at Angel Tree locations around the community, each
angel has information about the child's gender, age, size, and Christmas wishes. If you want to
be a part of the success of Project Santa Claus, please call Project Santa Claus for more
information at 775-450-0137 or stop by the District office.

Our Annual Christmas Celebration will be on Saturday December 16, 2023, at 10:00AM in the
Board Room. Craft stations will be set up and ready to create unique one-of-a-kind decorations.
Santa will arrive at 11:00AM with gifts for all the children. Parents don’t forget your camera for
pictures of your little ones with Santa. We will be having three raffles. One for a flat screen TV,
tickets are $3.00 each, one for a $50.00 Olive Garden gift card, tickets are $2.00 each and six
frozen turkeys, bring a few cans of food for each ticket. All Food donations collected are for the
Carson Valley Food Closet and all cash proceeds from the TV and gift card raffle will be donated
to Austin’s House.



Water Department Report November 2023

Water Quality:

- The Bac-T sample results for October 2023 came back good.

- The Hobo water plant received 15.8 MG of {(Minden) water for the month of October.
- North Well and South Well have been turned off for the winter due to low demand.

- Ridgeview Well pumped 2.5 MG of water for October.

- Hobo well has been turned off for the winter.

Water Plant Rounds:
Every morning all operations of the Water plant are checked. Morning rounds consist of,

- The water level and operation of all water storage tanks are checked and recorded.
- The water pressure at the plant and off-site booster stations is checked and recorded.

- All flow and totalizer meters are checked, and the amount of water used is recorded.

- The booster pumps at the plant are checked for proper voltage and current. They are also
checked for excessive temperatures at bearings and checked for any water leaks. All
information is recorded.

- Water samples are taken from the plant, and we check the water for proper chlorine
residual and calibrate the chlorine analyzer as needed. We also check the water for PH,

clarity, and temperature. All information is recorded.

- Trends of the water system are checked through SCADA. Checking these trends for
anomalies in the distribution system can give us an early warning of future problems.

Maintenance:

- All of the Water departments remote sites and vaults have been winterized in preparation
for freezing weather.

- The Water department installed a new chlorine injection line at the water plant due to the
old one becoming brittle with age.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 992 Desert Dr. due to a leak in the
meter pit.



Wastewater Department Report November 2023
1: Treatment plant: We decided to haul the sludge out of the northeast pond in-house. Ryan has
been hauling 3 loads, 2 to 3 days a week with the gooseneck trailer. He has reduced the pile by about
a half and will continue hauling as weather allows.

| finished mowing all the roads at the plant.

Ryan has set up our new spray rig and is spraying weeds on a regular basis.

Ryan and | have dragged the roads on a regular basis, especially after any rain.

2: Lift Stations: All 4 lift stations continue to perform satisfactorily.

3: Sewer Collection: Ryan inspected problem manholes and is editing the list as needed. He is
up to date on manhole flushing.

Continue weekly check of sewer hot spots (manholes that develop above average grease
buildup) and physically pulling sewer lids, checking for flow, debris, root intrusion and
confirming locations in relation to our plot maps. This ongoing maintenance of the sewer
system has been very successful;, we have identified potential problems long before they
develop into messy situations.



AGENDA ITEM 5b.

Reports to the Board:

b. District Accountant Report



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES
AS OF 10/31/23

CASH BALANCES

Operating

Reserved from rate increase

Reserved for Parks

Reserved for streets

Reserved for water tank
Operating Available

Payroll

Money Market-Nevada State Bnk

Reserve for Infrastructure
Reserve for Connections

Reserve for storm water mgt
Reserve for sewer debt reserves
Reserve for short lived assets

Money Market Available
Money Market-Moreton

Pipeline

Reserve for USDA debt service

Reserve for O&M

Reserve for short lived assets
Reserve for AB198 capital repl

Reserve for construction
Pipeline Available

Investment Pool
IHGID

IHCIP (2m 2007 Bonds)
Drinking Revenue Bond

Total

Total

$ 5,631,385.74
$ 2,654,967 .51
$ 25619.87
$1,376,314.42
$ 30,066.85

10/31/2023

1,641,262.56
655,461.95
603,636.66
44,668.39
58,474.20
47,636.20

& 0 €0 £H H &

$ 583,829.74
$  40,284.00
$ 67,941.82
$ 337,378.45
$ 121,877.92
$ 16,347.55

$ 1,544,417.09

$ 13,710.87

$ 231,385.16

$ 3,035,156.25

$ -

$ 4,824,669.37

9,175.59
127,813.24
264,733.53

$
$
$
$ 401,722.36



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES BY FUND

10/31/2023
CASH BALANCES 10/31/2023
WATER SEWER ADMIN
Qperating 1,455,715.00 1,939,221.88 2,236,448.86
Reserved from rate increase 1,337,364.88 1,317,602.63
Reserved for streets 100,000.00 1,276,314.42
Reserved for parks 25,619.87
Reserved for water tank 30,066.85
Operating Available -11,716.73 621,619.25 934,514.57
Money Market-Nevada State Bank 432,582.58 749,563.27 459,116.71
Reserve for infrastructure 149,979.88 216,713.64 288,768.43
Reserve for Connections 314.643.33 288,993.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 44,668.39
Reserve for sewer debt service 58,474.20
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 47.636.20
Money Market Available -32,040.63 137,745.90 125,679.89
Money Market-Moreton 1,007,175.92 1,007,175.92 1,007,175.93
Pipeline 583,829.74
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 337,378.45
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 121,877.92
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 963,418.56 1,766,541.07 2,067,370.39



INDIAN HILLS GID
ATTORNEY EXPENSES
OCTOBER 2023

MONTHLY FEE 3,000.00
EXPENSES 31.05

TOTAL 3,031.05



%LG'C 0e0e/LiL
%SeE LGQe/LIg
%G.LC csoefLlL
%00v gcoc/L/LL
%9r'c 9coz/LiL
Jivd  INJWAVd
L1S3H3LNI  TVNIH

Ainr pue uer anp 90'cvE'Op
ATHLNOW 00°/5€'E
ATHLNOW 80'#S.'F

AGN pue Ay anp s

AInr pue uer anp /£'022'65

saliea junowe Juswied .
(43ANTS %S9 ‘HILVYM %SE) «

ININAV

iy'98e'vL0'e $

G9'S06'€IS $ 31v1S 0L0Z ININAdId

LT006'9gL § ANIN3did vasn

SROPTLLLL $ Y3aMIS vasn

00'000'62F $ +»  (NOS 200Z 43M3IASRAILYM

0L€EE'L8T § aNO4g €002 ¥3LVM
JONVIVE l193a

€2/1e/0k 40 SY
1930 WH3L ONOT
Q19 STIH NVIAONI

10



INDIAN HILLS GID
ENGINEERING EXPENSES

OCTOBER 2023
ENGINEERING FEES 4,000.00 **
INDIAN DRIVE 7,232.50

11,232.50

**far September and October



6E'vS9 00's1 000 000 8.°60L 00'e L9'8PS Q0EL SIVLOL
000 0 000 000 000 JINVHO3IW
000 0 000 000 000 DINVYHOIAN
000 0 000 000 000 H3dNS Y3M3S
8.°60L < 000 84°G0L c 000 H3dNsS 43aM3S
000 0 000 000 00°0 HO3L1 ¥3m3s
000 0 000 000 000 HD231 43Mm3as
000 0 000 000 00°0 140ddNs NIWAayY
G0'08¢ S 000 000 S0'08¢C G 140ddNS NIWav
000 0 000 000 000 H3dNS H3LYM
000 0 000 000 000 H3dNS H31LVM
000 0 000 000 000 S13341S
000 0 000 000 000 S133yls
000 0 000 000 000 SHdvd
96'89¢ 8 000 000 95'809¢ 8 SHdvd
000 0 00°0 000 000 HO3L H31VM
00°0 0 00'0 000 000 HO3L H31¥M
~ sBuuse3 SInoH SN0 €£202/02/0L sSinoH  €20Z/9/01 sJnoH safojdw3
2oL el  o1ep Aed ajep Aed aep Aed
€202 J24e100
SHNOH LNOTIVI/ANILHIAO

1ouUsIq Juswaacidw| [eIBUSS S||IH UBIpU|



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
CRICKET/VERIZON
GRANT INCOME
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

infrastructure depletion {DEPRECIATION)

WATER
(OVER)/ 33.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER

1,405,000.00 592,973.90 812,026.10  42.20%
000  5,130.00 (5,130.00)  0.00%
12,441.60  3,110.40 9,331.20  25.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
4,000.00 1822878  (14,228.78) 455.72%
0.00 250.00 (250.00)  0.00%
1,421,441.60 619,693.08  801,748.52  43.60%
437,246.01 130,139.96  307,106.05  29.76%
452,975.00 165,569.66  287,405.34  36.55%
236,732.60  51,730.83  185,001.77  21.85%
55,038.28  24,063.63  30,974.65  43.72%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,181,991.89 371,504.08 810,487.81  31.43%

239,449.71 248,189.00 (8,739.29)
545,000.00 181,666.68  363,333.32  33.33%



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEQUS

TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT (LOSS)

infrastructure depletion {(DEPRECIATION)

SEWER
(OVER)/ 33.33%

BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,011,000.00 36548130  645,518.70  36.15%
0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00%
120.00  11,811.29  {11,691.29) 9842.74%
0.00 250.00 (250.00)  0.00%
1,011,120.00 377,542.59  633,577.41  37.34%
426,189.65 129,430.88  296,758.77  30.37%
221,42500 8592223 13550277  38.80%
110,851.63  92,380.13  18,471.50  83.34%
43,437.33  16,292.96  27,14437  37.51%
0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00%
801,903.61 324,02620 477,877.41  40.41%

209,216.39  53,516.39  155,700.00

383,000.00 127,666.68  255,333.32  33.33%



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

STREETS

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2023

GENERAL
(OVER)/ 33.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
AD VALOREM 1,154,366.00 538,505.97 615,860.03  46.65%
DOUGLAS CO. CONSOLIDATED TAX 404,710.00 131,422.50 273,287.50  32.47%
PARK REV 500.00 300.00 20000  60.00%
GRANT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
DONATIONS 000 161987  (1,619.87)  0.00%
MISCELLANEQUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
INTEREST 2,500.00 12,727.14  (10,227.14) 509.09%
STORM WATER 21,700.00  7,32555  14,374.45  33.76%
TOTAL REV 1,583,776.00 691,901.03 891,874.97  43.69%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 101,919.04  30,151.18  71,767.86  29.58%
OPERATING EXP 223,950.00 49,616.11 174,333.89  22.15%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 220,534.96  52,506.63 168,028.33  23.81%
OPERATING EXP 153,175.00  49,301.55 103,873.45  32.19%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 235,533.36  60,495.01 175,038.35  25.68%
OPERATING EXP 95,425.00  22,264.56  73,160.44  23.33%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00  3,307.00  (3,307.00)  0.00%
TOTAL EXP 1,030,537.36 267,642.04 762,89532  25.97%
PROFIT 553,238.64 424,258.99  128,979.65
338,000.00 112,666.68 22533332  33.33%

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

/S



£9'616'662 $  (SSOT)IWOONI | Z9°688°089') $ SNVO1 V1oL [P97T¥T9s$ 37aVIIVAY TV.L0L
00°0$
S5/PE'9LS UOI}2NIISUCD JOJ BAISSDY
Z6°428'LT1$  luswaoeidal leydeo g6L.gy Jo) aAI9SY
G'8/E'LEES slasse paall Hoys J0j aaesay
28°1L16'298 WR0 10} aa8s8Y
§Z'€1.'6LE $ SASNIJX3 IVLOL 00'¥8Z'0v$ (popuny Ajjny) 82IAI8S Jq9p 10} dAISSAY
- $ AepnQ (eyde) v/'628'¢85$ auljadid
€9'€90'vT  $ dx3 sas8)
99'696'¢9L $ dx3 Bunesadg
96'6EL'0EL §  swsuag/saueles
£9°070°ZES- s|qepeay el Asuo
cEEPA'rLES SUORBUUOY) 10} SAIDSSY
28°6/6'6VLS aINjonJ)sesu| Joj aalssay
80°€69'6L9 $ INNIAIY TVLOL 867852V 1oe Asuop
00°052 $ SLodU| oSIN
oroLL'e ¢ UOZUBA
8.8zz8l ¢ 1sa59] | 9'608'ELS ajels auedid
000EL'S $89) uoROBUUOD | /2°006'9EL vasnauyedld  |2Z°€82°88$ ajqe|reAy Bupesado
Zevesy ¢ sogya)el | 000628l ¢ (%SE) 2LOZ-puog J9lepn  [GB'990°0ES UE} I21eM JOj PaAIasay
86'756'0LE § seoq4 oley oseg | 0L'€EE'LBT $ £00Z-puog J)epy  |88'F9E'LEE'LS 9SEaI0UY 3JE) WO PanIasay
099ZL'LiT § s934 Jasn 00'SLL'SSH'LS Bunesado
S3SNIdX3 / SINNIATY S3AONVIVE NVO1 S3ONVIVE HSVD

€20zZ/LE/0l

AYVIWIANS ANNd Y31VM

Q19 STIH NYIANI



Z5'968'stl ¢ (SS01) IWOINI 68'96+'c6E’')l $ SNYO1 V.10l G1L°S92'65.$ FIgVvIIvAY TV10L
06'S¥2'LELS ajqejieay Jaxep Asuop
209%9°LEZ  $ SISNIAAXI TVLOL
- $ fepno |ende)
o8'ZBZ'9L ¢ dx3 1s2.49)u| 02°0£9' /D S]9SSE PaAI| LOUS JoMas 10} aAI9SaY
cZze6'ss ¢ dx3 Bunessdo 0Z'riF'ess BOIAITS JQOP 1oMSS J0) BAISSIY
88°0E¥'6ZL ¢ sjyouag/ssliees ££'£66'88C$ SUOIIDaUUOY) 10} BAlesaY
¥ocir'oLes alnjonaselU| 1o} aAIesSY
1T€95'6p.LS e Asuoy
65°Z¥S'LLES JNNIATY TVLOL
00'05Z% SLUODUI DSIN 26191293 alqejieay Buesado
62L18'LLS 1saJ8ju|
00°0% $89) UoiIsuuc) G8'orZ'ZLLL $ puoq 1omas ¥agsn
LEv68'rS S99 91E7 00°052'9/Z $ (%G9) ZL0Z-puog Jomag £9Z09'2LLE'LS SSEDJOU| 3)e) WOoJ) PaAI9sDy
66°'98G'09€$ $994 l8sn - $ 6661-puog Jomag 88'LZZ'6E6'LS Bunesado
SISNIdXE / SANNIATY SIONVYIVE NVYO SIDNVYIVE HSVD

€202/1€/01
AHVYIAINNS ANNd Y3IM3S
aio STHH NVIANI



J79VIIVAY V101

a|qejieAy jaxJe fauop

16W Jaiem wIoLS 10} aAI9SaY
aInonselyu| 10) anasay

1Iep Asuop

ajqejieay Bunelado
syJed 10} paalasay
S]981]S IO} pantasay

Bunelado

66°'85Z'vZPs (sS07) IWODNI 9r'v61°090°L$
¥0°Zv9°292% S3ISNAdX3 WI0L 68'629'6Z1L$
00°20£'c$ fejino (eyden
zzzeL'ieLs dx3 Bunesedo
Z8TsL'erLS sjjeusg/seleles

6€ 899 S

£'89/'882%
£0°106°169% ANNIAIY TVI0L 12°911'65P$
186L9'1$ shoaue|@osIN
00°0% paAi@oal punj JUBIS)
vL'22L'TLS BWOodU| 15391 LS PLSVEES
00'00€$ $994 Uoieasay 18'619'62$
16'G05'8£6$ Xe) WaIoJeA py ZrvLE9LZ' LS
052ZZr'LELS Xe ), polepIjosuo)
§5'6ee' /s $39) J9jeMm LIS 98 8¥P'9£T'2S

NINGY
SISNIAdXT / SINNIAAIY
€20Z/LE/0L
(W3NOTVA aV)

AYVINNNS S1IFAULS ‘SHEVd ‘NINAY
ao S77IH NVIANI

S3ONVIVE HSVD

/¥



AGENDA ITEM 5c.

Reports to the Board:

c. Engineer Report



AGENDA ITEM 5d.

Reports to the Board:

d. Attorney Report

0



AGENDA ITEM 6.

Discussion only regarding the District’s monthly
water and sewer rates.
(District General Manager, Chris Johnson)



AGENDA ITEM 7.

Discussion and possible action regarding General
Manager Chris Johnson’s annual performance
evaluation.

(Chairman, Dunham)

A



Giving an evaluation to anyone with only a minimal amount of time
regarding their working schedule is futile.

I can only base my opinion on what I observe and hear. Chris has
always been enthusiastic when speaking to me during board meetings

and district functions.

I have come to realize his duties to be far more complex. His recent
presentation on the Dog Park was outstanding.

I appreciate his ability to inform with assurance and confidence in all
matters pertaining to our District.

Thank you.

o3



Indian Hills General Improvement District Manager Evaluation Input

During the past 12 months Chris has demonstrated his communications skills during each
Board meeting. He is concise, courteous and clearly communicates his thoughts and ideas to
the public, board members and Douglas County representatives.
o Chris often assists the relatively new Board members stay on track to ensure no open
meeting laws or procedures are violated.
o Due to his extensive history with the IHGID, Chris can often provide background
information in Board meetings to explain how and why the IHGID procedures or
policies were developed in the past.

Chris has demonstrated his commitment to cost containment through his efforts to shop for
the best price on services and materials needed to improve and/or maintain IHGID assets.
o Based on Chris’ monthly reports to the Board, it appears that he has cultivated a
similar outlook amongst District employees.
o Potential IHGID equipment issues are recognized and addressed before they result in
more costly repairs or extensive downtime.
o All IHGID employees are encouraged to seek innovative, cost-effective methods to
achieve District objectives.

Based on Chris’” monthly reports to the Board, all County, State and Federal requirements for
water testing/treatment are complied with ensuring public health and resulting in no
compliance related penalties.

Based on observations throughout the IHGID, Chris has fostered a climate where his
employees take great pride in the appearance and upkeep of our facilities.

For future evaluations it would be helpful to have Chris develop some personal, measurable
goals for the IHGID.

QY



Regarding Chris Johnson’s 2023 performance evaluation, | am not aware of any formal direction that was
provided by the previous year’s Board to him for the evaluating period. As such, | make the following
observations based on my reasons for running for the Board, and living in the district:

Pride of ownership, clean and safe community - the past year was a season of many challenges with
many snow events and over-growth in the summer. Many concerns were shared by the public related to
the snow removal. And many concerns have been shared by the public related to RV’s parked on the
streets, foliage overgrowth on sidewalks and in water retention areas. Additionally, there are seemingly
challenges related to making adequate repairs within the district {(getting materials). Some of these
challenges pose safety risks (cones blocking off removed concrete) and should have more attention
placed on them. There are future opportunities for improvement in these areas. Chris put a lot of effort
into challenges that occurred during the winter, and updated the board accordingly.

Trails and recreation facilities - the skate park has been a big challenge and has been dealt with by
getting technology in place (cameras). We did hear from residents a great deal about dog park concerns.
Chris (and staff) seemingly handle those concerns with the residents as best as possible, He has moved
forward with looking at possibilities for water conservation, dog park enhancements, skate park
enhancements, and more. There’s more to be done in this area, but Chris has addressed these concerns
as they've heen brought forth.

Community events - While | have not been able to attend all events, the ones | have attended have good
turnout and continue to enhance the lives of the public. Chris attends these events and does well
representing the GID community.

Aging infrastructure - this is a topic which likely needs more attention and funding in the future. Chris
has managed the Indian Drive challenge and the repairs will be made. A plan and schedule should be
created for future projects. Additionally, Chris purchased a program for mapping out district
infrastructure, covering items from sprinkler heads to manhole covers, and everything in between.
Chris’s usage of technology is a great enhancement to the GiD and | applaud these efforts.

GID staffing - we've heard about some recent turnover, as well as continued turnover in certain
position’s within the GID. My hope and direction is that staffing concerns be fairly and adequately
addressed, and dealt with properly. Chris was able to fairly negotiate a new contract for staff and the
board approved that earlier this year. Chris seemed budget conscious, but balanced that with staff
concerns.

Technology - We have learned a lot about the increase in technology usage within the GID, during Board
meetings. | applaud Chris for the increased usage of such a valuable tool in today’s workplace.

| have personally found Chris to be available whenever I've needed to speak with him. He provided me a
lengthy and in-depth tour of the district, and has an overall pleasant demeanor. He also has a great
sense of humor and that is appreciated.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback related to the General Manager’s performance over
the past year.

Thank you,
Vicky Lufrano

A5



Wednesday, November 8, 2023
7:07 PM

IHGID GM Evaluation — Narrative — Calendar Year 2023

Summary

Year 2 Evaluation: Meets Expectations

Mr. Johnson is where | would expect a second year IHGID GM to be. Chris brought with him a solid
foundation of management and operations skills from his previous Airport Operations role, New to the
position of General Manager of a General Improvement District, the challenge of transitioning to the
breadth, depth, new and nuanced IHGID responsibilities have been well handled. | recognize and
appreciate Mr. Johnsons positive influence on moral and staffs’ receptiveness of his management style. |
believe Chris is living up to hopes of the Trustees who initiated the current five-year contract. With
continued support, direction, and regular communication of expectations from the Board, | believe Mr,
Johnson will continue to grow and improve in all aspects of managing our district. | look forward to
continued collaboration with Chris in the years to come, as | believe he is well positioned to lead our
district as the GM well beyond the term of the current contract.

Achievements/Acknowledgements

Chris has embraced and exemplifies leveraging technology to modernize, simplify, and improve the
overall efficiency and safety of the district, with the goal of enhancing productivity and moral.

Mr. Johnson has implemented a tracking system for “parking lot” items, tasks, and inquiries/requests by
board members and other action items. [ trust this system will preclude past isolated incidents of
delayed action by allowing task items and progress to be shared directly with Trustees in real time.

GM Johnson has been receptive to creating a high-level public facing maintenance schedule for district
facilities and areas where the public has access or visibility. (Ex. Parks, Detention Ponds, Storm Canals,
general weed abatement and painting/striping of road, crosswalks and curbing, etc.)

Opportunities
Enforcement of Districts Sidewalk Obstruction Policy.
Collaboration with individuals or agencies for expenditures utilizing private donations..

Collective Bargaining Negotiations and improved assessment of impacts or lack thereof of monetary and
non-monetary concessions made to staff outside of Colliective Bargaining.

Goals for Year 3 {CY2024)

Creation of district succession plan for critical staff positions.
Training and development plan for GM and Staff where practical and available.

Create a 3/5/10 year IHGID strategic plan that takes into consideration if not in direct alignment with the
Douglas County Strategic Plan.

RMG

Ay



Wednesday, November 8, 2023
7:07 PM

Year 1 (CY2022) GM Evaluation

For reference, Garcia’s Evaluation of GM Chris Johnson for Year 1, submitted by email due to my
unavailability for the verbal evaluation at the November 16, 2022, board meeting.

Evaluation: satisfactory

Comments: | look forward to Chris’s evolution as a general manager of IHGID and appreciate that staff
appreciates respects and generally likes our new general manager.

| am optimistic current and future boards will be able to work collaboratively on matters important to
the district and as Chris says “assign value and prioritize” accordingly.

Respectfully and objectively submitted for board consideration as requested by IHGID Board
Chairperson, Dale Dunham

Robert M Garcia
IHGID Trustee

RMG &7



Employees 1:

Employee 2:

Employee 3:

GM evaluation input received from Staff:

As per me, Chris has been a huge uplift in staff relationships among field staff and moral.
He leads with the comfort and knowledge of knowing that he trusts his supervisors are
doing their jobs and getting the jobs done around them. Chris will pick up the phone and
call you if there is an issue within the district. He has shown to be a good leader by being
involved with the community functions.

Chris has great leadership skills, he is personable, friendly, and trusts and believes in his
staff which goes a long way. Chris has brought IHGID from a place that was hard to work
for because of low morale or a dictator leadership to a place where most if not all now
enjoy working. He values employees input and listens to needs and concerns. He
communicates effectively with staff, public and the board as far as | know. Staff, public
and outside contacts all respect Chris. Chris is a great addition and leader to IHGID, and
we are happy to have him as our leader. | enjoy working for him and look forward to
many years of success with him as the GM.

Since Chris started as GM morale amongst District staff has continued to improve and is
the strongest, | have seen it in the years | have been with the District.

Chris has been on time with staff evaluations, which is a much-appreciated
improvement over waiting weeks to months to receive a yearly review.

Chris has worked hard to bring the District into the technology age, where we
desperately need to be. We now have decent cameras in some park areas, with more to
be added as the need arises. We have a folding/stuffing machine to assist office staff
with mailing monthly bills, this makes much better use of staff time than hand stuffing
the nearly 2000 monthly bills. Chris automated our timesheets which has cut down on
addition errors.

Chris has an open-door policy and is available to staff as well as board members (should
they choose to reach out to him). If out of the office, he is always available by phone or
email.

Chris does not micro-manage staff. He does a good job of overseeing without telling
staff how to do the job they know how to do. He will offer advice if he feels there is a
more efficient or cost-effective way to accomplish a task and is willing to assist staff
when needed. This, in my opinion, is what a good manager does.

Chris listens to staff input and suggestions. If he doesn’t think the idea will work, he
explains why instead of just saying “no”.

¥



Employee 4:

Chris is easy to approach and easy to work for and with. From what | have observed,
staff feel comfortable approaching Chris. Chris seems to have a good rapport with staff.

In the interactions with residents that | have observed, Chris is levelheaded even when
confronted by an upset resident. He listens carefully and explains what the District has
the ability to do to remedy the situation.

The public {and it seems the board) seem to believe that the District has more authority
than we actually do. There are often issues that arise that are out of the scope of the
District, (i.e. speeding, County Code Enforcement issues, animal control issues). If the
issue is beyond District authority Chris will direct them to the proper agency.

In my opinion Chris is doing a good job as GM, supporting staff, and looking out for the
hest interests of the GID as a whole, not just one area or special interest.

I enjoy working for the District, in large part due to having Chris as GM.

During the last year Chris has shown his strong leadership skills in many areas.

He manages all District laws, ordinances, and regulatory compliance requirements with
the help of staff and professionals working for the district.

Chris represents the district in a professional manner, is honest, trustworthy, and easy to
work with and for. He attends all district events and is happy to participate.

Chris is fiscally responsible while at the same time not taking short cuts on needed items
to ensure the continuity of district aperations. His desire to use technology and advance
the district is a nice change and well received by staff and the public.

Chris always makes himself available to staff and the public. He is always professional,
personable, and friendly. He has made IHGID a place employees want to work again.
Chris values employee input, listens to concerns, needs, and ideas. He makes everyone
feel like part of the team by collaborating with staff as needed. He supports the staff’s
desire and encourages professional growth among employees.

Chris has taken the initiative to evolve the district to provide a great community for
residents of IHGID. He takes the mission of the District “To provide, within its charter,
those public facilities and services which maintain and improve the quality of life of its
resident families and to maintain and operate those facilities and services at the highest
quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the intent to continue to do
so for a growing population of resident”, to heart and in my opinion keeps this in mind
on a daily basis.

|



Chris leads by example and is never afraid to ask questions or seek advice when he
doesn’t know something, using his staff and professionals with extensive knowledge of
the district and history as necessary.

I enjoy working for and with Chris and look forward to many more successful years
working for the district with him as our GM.

Tim Russell responded with the following:

I don’t have any specific feedback regarding Chris’s performance for the board other than we have been
able to work professionally with Chris and all the IHGID staff without issues. We enjoy working with
IHGID and take great pride in our long-term relationship with IHGID which has been able to continue in a
positive manner with Chris as the manager.



2

90URBUWLIOJISJ
pue sjuowWYSI[dwW 0oy
SIoSBURBIA

[eIRU9T) £606




"YOJBJA OJUIL SYooMm SUIMO[[0] 10J SUIPOO[]
DAISSI0Xd OU SBM 9J9([) 1B() 2INSUD 07 (SpuUsayaom
Surpnyout) JO1I3SIP SAIIUS JO YSN0AY} SALIP ATrep pI( -

"€3/¥/1 Jo Suturow A[Ies
a3 [1un Jamod ynoyjm doys pue $921JJ0 OLYSI(T -

's319919)s SuLIead pue ‘sdund pue suorje)s JI[ no
Sui381p ‘saorysA Ino Suld3ip ‘siojersussd SUIdIAIYS
pue Surjenj ‘reuorjeaedo aanjonajseayut deoy

0} 9540]dwWo [[€2-U0 Y} IM PIIOM I9SeUBN 10TX)SI(] -

"%3/1€/3T JO SuIULAd
93 U0 aanjonJdisetjul [Je o0} ITomod 3801 301L3SI(T -

WJI03S S JE80 A MIN




X e

by -3 ._rn.%_.. i il 1.-.5._1.__ ._—...Q.J.‘_‘__.llu.. ..;n”_%“l_

r___. u...v 1 i - = \%\ 8 Il..‘;..lw: .

a..l.“.' & H.W 3 .

i e 1

S |

‘TedIpew 10§ JNO ) S 15 Y xﬂ

Popeou pue S)[BM JIBI[D 0] S[(BUN SI9M
18() S8OUSPISaI A[I9P[@ U2ASS J0] SoWT)
sydi[nuw Sy[eMm 9} Poaea[d A[[euosio -

‘9jetodo
0] PaNUIIUO0D I9M3G 2P I8)JBAA "SOOIAISIS
JOLAYSIP oY) ul uojdnisIp Ou Sem YT, -

"'$901AX9S Aue ut doip e 99s jou

PIP JOLXISTP 9} 2ansuo 03 18a4 93 JO

SAep JSI1J 9Y) pue puaysam Aepljoy ayj
ISA0 SUWIT)IBAO JO SINOY (O I9A0 POYIOA -

WI0IQ
S T8O X MON




=
e

‘d[ey Ino 10J payse pue uUoiIeIg
aa1, 9Y) Iea[d 03 S}9SSE 8y} dARY 10U PIp O dH *
"JOLIISTP 873 UT PajoLI)sal E.HOPm wn.Hmmw. B@Z

10U 319M SBITAISS AOUSSIOWd JBl} aINSua 0} g Uojelq
ax] j1o] 1Seq 1e Surgied pue SOALIp 9} paaes[) -

L
e
g

o, P TR

B B T AT

3 gk
pre T e




"197eMI)SeM JO MO o3 Surgdnasip

INOYJIM UOTFBIS T 91} U0 JI0M

pue sdueULljUIBW WIOJIod 0] WEs)

JI9reMm 9)1sem o) se[qeus yorym “yoafoxd
ssedAqg ¢ uone)g Iy ay) pajerdwo) -

ssedAq
g uore)g Yry




oy T
TR F o ey
_.;..

A L ey
: .ri&‘,&ﬂfhﬁ

F |

"JUSWdII0JUS paseardut 10f OSDHA
0} poads 9AISS9IXa Jo spuaa} Sunaoday -

"SpeBOI S JOLIISI(]
uo spaads S[d1YaA U0 BjEp IUIOI[0)) -

Jo[re.t], SUIssory
poadg pojuswarduuy
pue paseyoinJg




soaAordwa
pue 1011)STp
I S e

ULI9)
IB3A-§ UL Payoo0r]

108.13U0)) UOTU[)] POIBIJOSON




"S9ATISAI 8 JOLISY(T
JO 9SN JUSIOLJJO }SOW
198 07 9w} 1091100 [IjUN
pIoYy uo sjuswascxdut
reyded s jorrgsi(q 3doyf

"Spoos
pue sanimn 18yjo [[e
Jo serea SUIsLI Jo 991ds
ur ‘asBagoul 9jex B 0p 0)
Poau Y3 INOYIIM SpasuU

S JOLISI(T 93 preydn)

jo8pnq paysIqessy

"UOTYB[Jul SUISLY
198JJ0 03 seakojdwe 0}
9SBAXOUL 9,7 [euonIppe
ue apraoxd 0} a[qe sepM

Do
)




‘Isnsny moﬁm_

9G1°GEe$ pejerousd
Sey §g/L/T1 JO SV oY

JOSIEIN
AQUOTA] MoUu

poysIqeISy
waniod 9/ 1°G




Events

73
-3
g
eV
>
b}
~
o]
Q
=
QO
(o}
-3
M
e
w2
g
Le}]
2
St
o
2
o
&
o]
e
@
-+
4]
o
a

Q
<
=
-
[an]
>
=i
o
wn
B
QO
>
o=
5
S
o
T
Ty
|
(=]
QL
=]
=
—
(&}
=
.-
o
-

)
=
o
S

=

&
o

e

<
L
g
g
-

w2

HO



Celebrated the 10th Anniversary of the

Senior Lunch Program




"10L19STp oY) wogy seouerdde

puE [ejoW Jo Spaek (g pueB ‘©)SBm Usa13 Jo spaed
0¥Z ‘ysexs jo spaed g9g suraowaa ‘sfep dnues[o
ATUNUWIUIOD PUSY oM 99IY) POYIOM PUR PalISOH

SYUSAT]




"§7AN00 STUUI] 3] JO 9sn
pezuoyjneun ayj sonpai
01 Wa)sAs joo[ pejuswadwy -

'$90RJINS
a3 pajureday "syoeld
pe[ess pue ‘po[[y ‘pepues -

"§3AN00 9}
Jo doeJInsax 93o[dwiod B pasu
JOU PIP 9M ey} PapN[oucd
PUE X030BIIUOD 9Y] YITM
§3IN02 STUUS) BYJ pajenyeay -

SIINO0)) STUU T,
paareday




oue[ uJanj 3Jo1 JI0J I8YSETJ J9JUa0 palapI() -

BOTJAl PUB 95pLIung Y3ION JO UOI09SI9)UL
9] 7B I9YSE[J Y[BMSS0I0 B pa[[ejsul pue 3ysnoq
‘sBurjeswl paeo( ayj je sjuapisal Aq pajsenbaa sy -

IOUSe[ ]
J[BMSSOI) PI[[BISU]




\
=2

"SI9ALIP 03 JBY}

g1 3 ‘yd d
So36a109p UL poeds ot SABH Tutod O 16 51 HOTIEIO] o], - espLIuUNg Inog uo
UsIg poadg par[elIsur

‘2dprIung yinog ur uoryedo] jususwrad € ojuo
1 pa[[ejSUL pue I9[lel) o9y} WolJ usls paads o) pesodinday -

e

-

Y .W.fr....h.r.w-u 81k




|

T irir

&

o .

o

"Wa)SAS 91} JO SUOIJBITUNWIUIOD 9} I9A0D 0} JUI[IBIS l Jo .

PO[[BISUI PUB SUOTJIUUO0I JUBPUNPII PIAOWY - -

‘dnyoeq I0J Wwa)sAS
juepunped e pue sjue[d yjoq ur surprodax xosues
surpraoad “posfoad epeasddn y(v)OS 9y2 pareduo) -

199[01 g
VAVOS pererdwoy




$}JeurI0] Bjep uo
91eI0qR[[02 pue I Ajuno) ‘1odo[oAep
Se[3no(] Yiim ures} ssoin) "WIBISAS SJ) poYoaeassy YIIM J0BIJUOD PIJeTIOFaN

WISAQ
QTH pojuswiaidui] pue paj1eIjoSoN




"‘$30Z A[1e9 Ul ulALLIe }ae)s 03 pajoadxs
pue paJspIo aJe sjyuomwascxdwt ay ], -

"sjuapIsed wody sjsenbea pue

mdur a3 uo peseq ‘sjusurssocxdurt yred

30p 9y ur £3UOU INO J0J SN[BA JSOW 5 ;e

oY} 308 oM JeY) sInsud 0y sefexded pue . = A oyl (I

Suo1)do JUSISJJIP PaydIeasal A[Y3noioyJ, - : ] il .=

sjuswaAoxdw| YaeJ S0(]
PAUSISO(] pUB PayoIeasay




"ysnaq a3dae[

pue s991) Jo asodsip 0] sjuapisaa 10y addiyd poom e SulduLiq
Jo 1erauajod ay) YHM ‘$Z0zg Ul sAep dnues]) Ljunuwwio))

INo adUBYUS 03 Pasn aq [ Surpuny juead Sutureway

PLHsYJ 8y}
30 23pe uIajsom ay) Suofe uoIoNPaI S[eNJ Op 01 FUMUIIUOC))

"SOITIP[IM 10] axedaad o} pue awoy IDY)

Jo Kjayes a3 aaoxdurt 03 Op UBD £33} JeYM U0 UOT)RULIOJUIT
a[qenyea Ym sioumoswoy Jurpracad ‘queas jo jaed se sowoy
g¥ uo suorjoadsu] soedg S[qISusfe(] A1ejUn[oA pajdnpuUc)

"seade aa1] YS1I YS1y 9Y) Suore JousIp ayy
JO 93pe ule)som 9Y) SSOI0B JUBLS UOIIONPII S[ANJ PIJRUIPIOO))

"£JTUnwuwo)) asImMaatg B (JI5) S[[IH UeIpu] ayew
01 A13890,] Jo yusunyreda(q AN JO ST[LAGN T[[93] YI1M POIOM

SHSM AIyp|im 3uidnpas syuspisay

VSN ISIMIAIA

YdiN

4

ATUNUWWO)) 9STMIIT PIYIeIS

4



*101X)STP 3Y) J0J AsUoW

9ABS 0] 199(0ag ALX( UBIPU]

a3 ojur j09loxg adeurea(g
pue piex oY) paurquio)) -

'$20g Jo sunadg A[1es a3
ut auop 3ureq Suiaed pue
HI0M PeOJ aY] UM ‘Tealk
STYJ Jxe)s [[m joafload ayJ, -

‘a[qrssod

1eloxd yuswederded sALI(T

ueIpuy ay3} ajew 0} 9Ly

JTWIOU099 [NOLJJIp AI8A ©
Juump sownT YIIm posIopN -

108(0xg
SALI(] UBIpU]

o
pUEELr | E =T a5 [ e e T, ]
Srirkl ] TTIETTS | i HH i |
ik i . S
T e [N A i H 1
Al vt e P H H i r 1 HY
T poect? Y | S
i V | ST ) - ¥
1 i) - I : ale e
| CER P 3, =) . 2 = 0 b T o
z " el ) e o vemon e P - A 1 e
R, A s |ymoniremens) pumy. s FUSLES | reiens | M | e sbu s are () R
i Tl & ey av) pid - e e L v !
= i "I o 11 CR T P} f— - s [ i
[ W a1, (1] el G e - - - o | !
o s S (LTI T P oy [P [ Lma e Loy S Y] [ ——
== " | e e ey T 8 Py g Ve o
T h = ' W Loty ] a e s o—-
H 1 R (= (emangiingel, - \ v et [ e Y g HT g
HH b - - - _ o
g e - - -— I
IH e T T ™ r= "~
- e o[ b
- | o T i H
LA v 1]
—py LELS
b Ll
.

,,
= w2 vy )|
) _ e - * e
A e R — R S N - =
AP CSSSES | [} bl rdP aF T m—cw H
o EES s g
= oSN
—r —— Y



‘adedqom
orepdn Aise9 pue L[yomb
03 jJels 801jjo so[qeury] -

*$985900ad [BUI9IUTL J0]
[e1xod esiojdws ue sepraocid -

R e Sl
SS00E 0] SJULPISaI J0]
[e1aod Iot[pusLij e sepracxJ -

‘adedqom mau o)

Po1oBIIuU0) pue ‘poudisop
‘pouueld ‘poyoaessay -

odedqgam

e

TS ¥3309 1018 M

. )

TauIAVEL YWOT00 "

CARFE LR
LR G

ol p




‘sutuue[ d2139)8ng
Ajuno)) sersno(q oy ut s[[Iy uerpuj jussaxdax pue ajedonied -

‘$Z0Z Ul UOT}BI0T SUIIOA
UoT1309[H ue se L3uno)) sedno(q surproddns aq Aqreryusjod [T -

"U0IOUN] SITIL)) JO aNFBT BPBAIN B POISOl -

"PPLIIST(] 93 Ul FUT99W U0 Po}SO] "SIadueur
Arunuuwod s 3uredy saadeuey A1uno)) se[dno( pepusny -

"JOLIISIP 973} JO INOS oY) Ul peod £juno)) sedno( Suifrey oy 03
SUOTIN[OS 10} SUIKOO[ pUe ‘SpUB[ [eqLL], SUTPUNOIINS JO UOTJEXSUUE
97} 9PN[IUI 0} SANSST JO IDQUWINU € UO 3qLL], Q0YSBA YIIM PIyIoOp -

‘[nJssa0ons pue [euorjerado walsAs o) doay

0} duipunj dn 3uIpiing a[Iym 9[qels Aej}s §9jed I97eM IN0 9INSUI

07 JUSUWISAIZY I9IB AN 91[) JO SISqUISUI PIAJOAUL I8YJ0 pue ‘A1)
U0SJIB)) ‘USPUIA JO UMO], ‘A1uno)) se[sno( Yim pajeloqe[o) -

SUOT)B[9Y] ATUNUIWIO))




‘preog oyl yitm Adorjod xoop uado JUBISUOI B POUTBIUTBIA]

"JOLI)SI(T 9Y3 Ul mpﬂmﬁmoﬁm\www.
durstie pue sansst feryusjod Uo paeoq pauwIoju]

"JOLIISIp
91 UI SonsSSI paje]ad paeoq [[e Jo peuiojut pagoq jdeyy

‘Spua¥eeMm U0 PUB ‘SINOY HIOM J3JEB ‘SInoy
JI0M SULINp S[IBRWO pur S[[ed paeoyg 03 A[{oinb papuodsay

digsuorje[ay pJleoyq



‘dututea pue
‘Suruuerd uoissaoons ‘SUIP[Ing Wed) YSnoay?y ISy 943 03Ul JI0m
paey pue jxeay jnd jey) sjdoad pood deay pue jINIdAI 03 SULNIOM -

“19LIS(T 93 ojurl ind JJe}s ano jey] JI0M piey o) Fulpiesmal
‘73e3s a3 10J uorjrugodsa pue uonyewsadde sjeaisuowsp 03 NUPUOY) -

‘s£epyIIIq 97BIa]eD 07 1I9S8P / Youn[ Yim sSunesu jjels A[Yjuoy -

‘JJels 9} Ul AI9PBIUIOD PUE JIOMIIE]

Y} p[Ing 07 $3U9Ad FUTUTRX) PUB SJUSAS FUIp[ing wrea) a[dnod e pjay -
quownjreda(] s39911G 29 S¥IBJ 93 0jUL SoUaLIadXe
Jo saea4 g1 3utduLiq ‘10jerad() g opely) $199138 % S Ied MoUu
Ino a1y 03 j0ds g pauado os[e SIY ], "Urq3im ajowoad o3 sn Furmoqpe
‘yuewrjredsp Jojem 3Y3] 0} I8JsueI} 03 9[qe sem uonisod Surjeoyy

ay ], ‘yor 10jexad( 1938 M T(J ano usym jjo pred uerd uoissadong -

"BEIS YITM JIOMUIBO] JO 9ANG[ND B P[ING 03 POJIOM -+

ureoa)
AW — JFels JPLISI




“uoywsuaduio)) 030, 2304200 M01aq LI 6F§
pUuD ‘9304200 MOJaq [HL VS 1SamM0O] Pu0Ids uvY} $83] 000 ZE$ S1 WD AIDHI

uonjesusduwo)
[e30], 8ST LTI / ATe[es 005°76$ - (3303) WD AID SI[TH ueIpuf

uoryesusdwo)) 18307, 188°031$ / Axeres 98z ‘911$ - (3303) WD dIH IIYpunoy
uoyyesusdwo)) (810, ZRT‘GG1$ / Axe[es 88 LIS - (3202) IND ASHIN

uoryesuaduwo))
8101, ¥€6‘20%$ / A181eS $EO°TETS$ - (3303) D (IO SOYdUuEy S[[laieupiey)

uorjesusaduwo))
[e10L LOE'681$ / AxeTes 95L9ET$ - (L102) D JID AIngssury

uorjesuaduio))
pue suor}IsoJ arqereduwo)

N



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered as of this 1st day of December 2021, by and
between INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a political subdivision of
Douglas County, State of Nevada, acting by and through its Board of Trustees, (hereinafter
referred to as “IHGID” or “EMPLOYER” interchangeably), and CHRIS JOHNSON (hereinafter
referred to as “EMPLOYEE” or “General Manager” interchangeably), both of whom agree as
follows:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, EMPLOYER agrees to hire EMPLOYEE as IHGID General Manager; and

WHEREAS, EMPLOYER desires to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions
of employment and set working conditions of EMPLOYEE; and

WHEREAS, EMPLOYEE desires to accept the position as General Manager subject to
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Duties

EMPLOYER hereby agrees to employ EMPLOYEE as General Manager to perform the
functions and duties of” General Manager of IHGID as set forth by law, as specified in the
General Manager Job Description, and to perform other legally permissible and proper duties and
functions as the EMPLOYER shall from time to time assign. EMPLOYEE shall report to work,

and perform the duties and employment of the General Manager as of the 1* day of December
2021.

(a)  Hours of Work. It is recognized that the General Manager is expected to engage
in the hours of work that are necessary to fulfill the obligations of the position, must be available
at all times, and must devote a great deal of time outside the normal office hours to the business
of IHGID. The General Manager acknowledges that the proper performance of the duties of the
General Manager of IHGID will require the General Manager to generally observe normatl
business hours and will also often require the performance of necessary services outside of
normal business hours, including being available on-call for emergencies. The General Manager
agrees to devote such additional time as necessary for the full and proper performance of the
General Manager's duties and that the compensation herein provided includes compensation for
the performance of all such services.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the parties intend that reasonable time off be
permitted EMPLOYEE, such as is customary for nonexempt managers, and that EMPLOYEE
will ensure coverage during such time offf for the duties of the Office of General Manager.

Sb



(b)  Residence. EMPLOYEE will maintain his residence within a twenty (20) mile
radius of the IHGID Office during the term of this Agreement.

Section 2. Term

A. The term of this Employment Agreement is for five (5) years effective December 1,
2021, to November 30, 2026, subject to the EMPIL.OYEE'S willingness and ability to perform
the required duties of General Manager, subject to a written review of EMPLOYEE within six
(6) months, and subject to EMPLOYER'S continued satisfaction with EMPLOYEE'S
performance.

B. EMPLOYEE agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of EMPLOYER during the term
of this Agreement, and neither accept other employment nor become employed by any other
employer unti! its termination date. The term “employed"” shall not be construed to include
occasional teaching, writing, or consulting performed on EMPLOYEE'S time off. Should
EMPLOYEE desire to engage in such occasional activities, he shall notify the EMPLOYER and
request approval in advance, which approval shall not be unreasonably refused.

C. Notwithstanding the term set forth in this Agreement, EMPLOYEE is employed at the
will of EMPLOYER, and nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere
with the right of the EMPLOYER to terminate services of EMPLOYEE at any time, subject only
to the provisions set forth in Section 4, paragraphs A and B of this Agreement.

D. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of
EMPLOYEE to resign at any time from his position with EMPLOYER, subject only to the
provisions set forth in Section 4, paragraphs C and D of this Agreement.

E. EMPLOYEE and EMPLOYER may agree to review, amend, renew or extend this
Agreement by a vote of a majority of the members of the entire Board of Trustees. A decision
not to renew or extend this Agreement by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the
entire Board of Trustees shall result in the termination of this Agreement and EMPLOYEE'S
employment with IHGID.

F. During the Term of this Employment Agreement, EMPLOYEE shall have four weeks of
paid vacation time per year, beginning year one. Pursuant to Section 1, subparagraph (a) above,
EMPLOYEE shall ensure coverage for all time off.

Section 3. Suspension

EMPLOYER may suspend EMPLOYEE with full pay and benefits at any time during the
term of this Agreement pending further proceedings pursuant to any necessary investigation or
disciplinary action.

Section 4. Termination and Severance Pay

A. At any time during the term of this Agreement, either EMPLOYER or EMPLOYEE may
terminate the Agreement by providing thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. Notice
shall be in accordance with Section 5 below.

Oy
~



B. Unless terminated for cause as described in paragraph D below, if EMPLOYEE is
terminated by the EMPLOYER before expiration of the aforesaid term of employment, after
EMPLOYER has given notice in accordance with paragraph A above, and during such time the
EMPLOYEE is willing and able to perform his duties under this Agreement, EMPLOYER
agrees to pay EMPLOYEE a lump sum cash severance payment equal to three (3) month’s
aggregate salary of the then-current annual base salary of EMPLOYEE. Severance pay shall be
in addition to any other payments for unused annual leave or other benefits that may be payable
to other unclassified management employees of IHGID with service credit equal to that of
EMPLOYEE. Severance payment shall occur within three business days of EMPLOYEE'S last
day worked.

C. In the event EMPLOYEE voluntarily resigns his position with EMPL.OYER before the
expiration date of the aforesaid term of his employment, then EMPLOYEE shall give
EMPLOYER notice in accordance with paragraph A above, unless the parties otherwise agree.
EMPLOYEE shall receive his then current salary during the thirty (30) day notice period and
EMPLOYER is not obligated to pay severance pay to EMPLOYEE, nor shall EMPL.OYEE
enjoy any continued benefits after termination of employment.

D. For purposes of this Agreement “cause” is defined as conduct which constitutes a crime
(except for a misdemeanor traffic citation), or conduct inappropriate for public officers as
unethical, or conduct subject to censure by EMPLOYER or conduct deemed by EMPLOYER to
constitute neglect related to the duties of General Manager. In such event, EMPLOYER shall
give written notice of its desire to terminate Employee for cause and the effective date of the
termination shall be fifteen (1 5) days alter notice is given in accordance with Section 5 below. If
EMPLOYEE is terminated for cause, EMPLOYEE shall not be entitled to severance pay or
benefits.

Section 5. Notices

When required by this Agreement, notice shall be in writing to EMPLOYER by personal
service on the Chair of the Board of Trustees, or sent by regular mail addressed to the
Chairperson of Indian Hills General Improvement District, 3394 James Lee Park Road #A,
Carson City, Nevada, 89705. Notice shall be in writing to EMPL.OYEE, by personal service on
EMPLOYEE, or sent regular mail addressed to 825 Amador Circle, Carson City, Nevada 89705.
No tice by personal service shall be deemed received on the date of delivery; notice by mail shall
be deemed received three (3) days after mailing.

Section 6. Disabilit

If EMPLOYEE is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform his duties
because of sickness, accident, injury, mental incapacity or health, as determined by a qualified
health care professional, for a period of four successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave, or
for twenty (20) working days over a thirty (30) working day period, EMPLOYER shall have the
option to terminate this Agreement, subject to the severance pay requirements of Section 4,
paragraph B. EMPLOYEE shall be compensated for any accrued sick leave, vacation, holidays,
compensatory time and other accrued benefits.

5%



Section 7. Salary

A EMPLOYER agrees to pay EMPLOYEE for his services rendered under this Agreement
a base salary of Ninety thousand dollars ($90,000) annually plus any adjustments provided in

paragraph B below. The annual base salary is payable in installments in the same manner as
other employees of the EMPLOYER.

B. The salary of the EMPLOYEE shall be reviewed and may be adjusted annually.

Section 8. Performance Evaluation

The EMPLOYER, with input from the EMPLOYEE, agrees to adopt priorities and
expectations for EMPL.OYEE beginning within two (2) months from the start of this Agreement.
Additionally, EMPLOYER and EMPLOYEE shall conduct a six (6) month evaluation of
EMPLOYEE to review and adjust priorities and expectations and assist in the success of the
evaluation process. The priorities and expectations may be added to or deleted as the
EMPLOYER may from time to time determine in consultation with EMPLOYEE.

Section 9. Benefits

EMPLOYEE shall be entitled to all benefits provided for unclassified management employees.
EMPLOYEE is not eligible to be a member of any collective bargaining unit, and confirms that
he has resigned any prior membership. EMPL.OYER agrees to pay all contributions to the
Nevada Public Employees Retirement Systems (PERS) on behalf of the EMPLOYEE, except as
otherwise provided herein, or by law. EMPLOYEE declines enrollment for EMPLOYER'S
health care insurance plan at this time,

Section 10. Dues, Subseriptions and Professional Development

A. EMPLOYER agrees to budget and pay for the professional dues and subscriptions of
EMPLOYEE necessary for his continuation and full participation in national, regional, state, and
local associations and organizations necessary and desirable for his continued professional
participation, growth, and advancement, and for the good of EMPLOYER.

B. EMPLOYER agrees to budget and pay for travel and subsistence expenses of EMPLOYEE
for professional and official travel, meetings and occasions appropriate to continue the
professional development of EMPLOYEE. and to adequately pursue official and other functions
of the EMPIOYER including, but not limited to, national, regional, state and local government
groups and committees thereof which EMPLOYEE serves as a member, not to exceed the
amount budgeted each year in the appropriate Genera! Manager accounts.

C. EMPLOYER also agrees to budget and pay for the travel and subsistence expenses of
EMPLOYEE for short courses, institutes and seminars that are necessary for his professional
development and the good of EMPLOYER.

Section 11. General Provisions

A. The text herein, and any addendums, constitutes the entire Agreement between the
parties.

ST



B. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held
unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof,
shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.

C. This Agreement shall be effective as of December 1, 2021.
D. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by the laws of the
State of Nevada. Venue shall lie exclusively in Douglas County, Nevada.

E. This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except by a written instrument
executed by the General Manager and the duly authorized representatives of the Board of
Trustees.

F. This Agreement shall be and become in full force and effect upon adoption and approval
of the Board of Trustees, and the execution and delivery hereof by the authorized officer of
IHGID and the Manager.

G. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate original counterparts, each of which when
so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together constitute but
one in the same instrument.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Board of Trustees has caused this Agreement to be signed and
executed on its behalf by its Chair, and duly attested by the Secretary, and the EMPLOYEE has
signed and executed this Agreement, all on the date and year first written above.

EMPLOYEE: EMPLOYER:

CHRIS JOHNSON ROBERT GARCIA, CHAIRPERSON
Indian Hills General Improvement District

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

CHARLES S. ZUMPFT, ESQ. WILLIAM EISELE, SECRETARY
Indian Hills General Improvement Indian Hills General Improvement District
District Attorney



General Manager

FLSA Status: Exempt Created:
Last Revised: 07/06/2021

DEFINITION:

Under the general direction of the IHGID Board of Trustees, performs executive level
management of all District staff. Responsible for general oversight of all District
programs/services including sewer, water, streets, parks, and recreation facilities. The
General Manager is responsible for District performance of such services in a manner so
as to assure operational and regulatory compliance. This Executive level position must
manage the district in full accordance with policies, agreements, union, and other
contracts as determined by the District Board of Trustees. Exempt employees are
generally expected to be available to perform their job duties during normal business
hours. It is expected that in order for exempt employees to complete their assigned work
from time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal workdays and
business hours of the district.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: This position has primaryresponsibility to monitor
and manage all duties as performed by subordinate staff. The position of General
Manager is classified as “safety sensitive” based on its access to time critical,
health/safety/welfare issues that may exist in a District emergency, state of emergency or
in event of a national safety threat.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS: (Performance of these functions is the reason the job
exists. Assigned job tasks/duties are not limited to the essential functions).

1) Manages and monitors all District laws, ordinances, permits and licenses
for faithfulperformance and regulatory compliance to best serve the district.
2) ldentifies District needs in prepared monthly reports to the Board; develops
action plans to mitigate such needs and generates alternative solutions for
consideration by the Boardof Trustees.
3) Attends all District Board of Trustees meetings and related District
meetings. Responsible for managing preparation of Board packets and
retated materials in compliance with OpenMeseting Laws of the State of
Nevada.
4) Negotiates, in consult with Districts’ legal counsel, on a variety of contracts
and agreements on the district’s behalf in strict compliance with standard
District budgetaryand purchase approval limits.
5) Responsible for the management of budget development including
overseeing subordinate slaff in the budget preparation process; develops
and oversees District Capital Improvement Projects, budgets, and
projections; develops and implements short- and long-range financial plans (D
for District. Responsible for maintaining budget on daily operational basis in /



6)

7)

9)

accordance with Trustee approved line-item budgets.

Oversees the operation and management of the district including the
supervision and control of all District property, administrative activities,
personnel, general business, anddaily operations.

Implements policies and directives as set forth by the Board of Trustees.
Responsible for the direction, development and implementation of goals,
objectives, policies, and procedures for necessary short- and long-term planning
efforts in the district.

Represents the District at an Executive level, within the community and with
other entities and organizations at the local, regional, state, and federal
government levels. Establish and maintain cooperative relationships with District
Counsel and District Engineering firm.

10) Responsible for general supervision of all staff and infrastructure

under District jurisdiction.

11)Attend all District sponsored events.

OTHER FUNCTIONS:

1)
2)

3)

4)
5)

Provides staff support as needed to the Board of Trustees.
Performs assignments and other job duties as requested by the Board of
Trustees.

Signs documents on behalf of the district as provided by State law and
whenever soauthorized by the Board of Trustees.

Be on call twenty-four hours a day seven days a week in case of an emergency.
Acts as final authority on agency hires, terminations, grievances after

they have beenprocessed in accordance with personnel policy and

Human Resources guidelines.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT:

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
function and duty satisfactorily. The requirements as listed below are representative of the
knowledge, skill and/orability required.

Knowledge and Abilities:

Knowledge of

Requires strong management skills in organization, fiscal analysis and
management, operational efficiencies analysis and implementation, and
personnel planning and negotiation.

Requires general knowledge of infrastructure planning and financing for all
District operationsand programs.

Requires knowledge of water, wastewater, collections, storm water system,
streets, parks, right of ways, open space and related equipment and
appurtenances.

Requires demonstrated ability to communicate effectively and clearly on complex
issues.

Requires a valid, current Nevada driver’s license, with a driving record

that enablesinsurability.

%



Ability to

* Requires ability to read, analyze, and interpret complex documents and
blueprints.

» Requires ability to provide strong Executive level leadership, set goals and
objectives, and tomotivate others to achieve timely project success.

 Ability to apply advanced mathematical concepts to field operations testing,
reliability, and variances is highly desirable. Requires ability to define problems,
collect data, establish facts,analyze trends, and draw conclusions.

* Requires the ability to be politically adept at fostering communications and in
negotiatingwith other legal or governmental organizations both in the private
and public sectors.

e Requires ability to read, understand and follow written and verbal instructions.

Experience and Training:

Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

A Bachelor's degree from four (4) year college or university in public administration,
businessadministration or related field, or equivalent; requires minimum five (5) years or
more of progressively responsible management/executive level management of
programs or projects with a focus on public agency is highly desirable or equivalent
combinations of education and experience.

Must possess working knowledge of the principles and practices of local government and
its management; District government structure and functions; laws as they relate to
General Improvement Districts; and basic practices of public budgeting and
governmental accounting. That theindividual has increasingly responsible public entity
experience working with an elected Board is highly desirable.

Degree of Responsibility:

Ability to work at a high-profile Executive level in an independent manner with general
direction provided by the Board of Trustees.

Physical and Mental Requirements:

» Requires ability to sit for extended periods during meetings and performance of
regular executive level job duties.

» Requires stamina and vocal ability to perform public speaking functions and
duties on aregular basis.

« Requires mental dexterity to handle emergency situations as they arise, and
to oversee all District operations.

¢ Requires the ability to lift up to fifty (50) Ibs.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to employ fine

finger dexterity to handle, feel, manipulate, and grasp objects; use hands and arms to

reach, hold, or moveobjects. The employee is occasionally needed to stand, drive, walk.

On a continuous basis the employee is required to speak, listen/hear, write, and use a (0
keyboard. 3



Working Conditions:

The work environment is frequently that of a quiet office setting. Offsite field operations
may includeexcessive noise levels. Characteristics shown here are representative of that
an employee encounterswhile performing the essential functions of the job. Reasonable

accommodations can be made in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act
guidelines.

I have read and understand the contents of this Job Description. | have received a
copy of this jobdescription for my records.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE: DATE:

Adopted by Board of Trustees on: 7/21/2021

otf



AGENDA ITEM 8.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the October 18, 2023, Board
Meeting.



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705
October 18, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Dunham, Vice Chairman Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, Trustee
Garcia, and Trustee Siegman.

Trustees Absent: none,

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer’s Collin Sturge and Tim

Russell. Residents Lynn Dement, Kathy Waters, Kathryn Clark-Ross, Dale Morlan, Ronny Lynch,
Debbie Walker and Shelina Bouthillier.

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Chairman Dunham called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.

2. Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Trustee Siegman.

3. Public Interest Comment: Resident Ronny Lynch stated he would like to thank Chris and the

board for the new flashing safety crossing light at Mica and North Sunridge. It will certainly
make the crossing safer for everyone including dogs, cats, quail, and other critiers. He thanks
you all so much.
Resident Lynn Dement stated she would like to add a huge thank you for the flashers, thank
you Chris for that. It 1s going to be a big improvement. She would also like to say thank you
to Brooke, she acted on all the pictures that were given to her on the overgrowth issues.
Notices have been sent out and three quarters of them are done. It looks great. Thank you
both. She would like to mention, you all know what happened to her in the park. She was
accosted again in the park; a man was following her asking her for money. There are a lot of
new people with mean dogs and kids. I know that there is nothing the GID can do about this.
Kids are not being good and putting big rocks in the park. Is there any way or any rapport
between the GID and DCSO, can we look into neighborhood watch or come up with
something, maybe ask DCSO to do more patrols. It is getting out of hand.

Minutes of the October 18, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-1-

0y



4. Approval of Agenda

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve the agenda. Trustee Siegman seconded. Motion carried
unanimously.

5. Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed his report with the board.
1. Administrative
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Administrative report
with the board.
2. Water
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Water report with the
board.
3. Wastewater
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Wastewater report with
the board.
b. District Accountant Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Accountant report with the
board.
c. Engineer Report
District Engineer Collin Sturge stated as Tim has mentioned in the past he
will be taking over as the District Engineer now. Tim will sit observing him
out in the audience until the end of the year. Indian Drive is the biggest news,
we will go over that during that agenda item. During the last meeting it was
mentioned about the golf course well and the water rights were due to expire,
on the second he requested an extension of five years. Then just a few
miscellaneous items with Chris.
d. Attorney Report
District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he has nothing to report.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated out of curiosity you have spent a lot of time talking
about traffic flow and speeding. Is Bob’s idea of speed bumps out of the question, it is still on the
table that we may do that at some point or is it done.

6. Discussion and possible action to award a bid to Spanish Springs Construction in the
amount of $1,848,905.00 with an additional $50,000.00 force account for the Indian
Drive Reconstruction & Utility Replacement Project.
General Manager Chris Johnson and District Engineer Collin Sturge discussed this item with
the board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: none.

Minutes of the October 18, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
o



Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano motioned to award a bid to Spanish Springs Construction in the
amount of $1,848,905.00 with an additional $50,000.00 force account for the Indian Drive
Reconstruction & Utility Replacement Project. Trustee Garcia seconded. Motion carried
unanimously.

7. Discussion and possible action to adopt a new park use fee schedule.
General Manager Chris Johnson discussed this item with the board.

The board briefly discussed this item.
Public comment: none.

Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano motioned to adopt a new park use fee schedule with a January 1,
2024 effective date. Trustee Garcia seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

8. Discussion and possible action to adopt a structured form for General Manager mid-
year and annual evaluation which may include goals and objectives for the next review
cycle. Trustee Garcia explained this item to the Board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated to clarify there is no public interaction in the
evaluation process of the General Manager. She is going to play devil’s advocate because she is not
so sure that is appropriate to have public comment during the evaluation process, there are too many
personalities that go into a public comment situation. She is going to butt heads with the board
because she is a resident and knows what is best for herself and her neighbors. Chris looks at it as
he is taking care of the whole district, there is $0 much more that he is involved with and has to take
care of and does an absolutely wonderful job doing it. Residents may not always agree with it. He
looks at it a different way. She would hope you use the public input as well.

No action was taken, the board gave direction to staff to form a committee to come up with a formal
evaluation process and form.

9. Discussion only on sharing excess speed data with the appropriate authorities.
Trustee Garcia explained this item to the Board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: none,

10.  Discussion only and update on James Lee Dog Park improvements.
General Manager Chris Johnson discussed this item with the board and showed a power
point.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Minutes of the October 18, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-3-

1



Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated this is all awesome dogs love agility courses, some
of her concerns are will there be room for dogs to run, that is a lot of stuff. It is all hardscape she
would like to see a little greenery, some bushes. The canopy is awesome. That would be great but
don’t put too much under the shade structure. Don’t look at the people’s comfort over the dogs.

It is awesome overall; you have chosen some wonderful things.

11.  Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the September 20, 2023,
Board Meeting,

Public comment: none.

Vice Chairman Stulac motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the September 20, 2023, Board
Meeting. Trustee Siegman seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

12. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.

13.  Adjournment

Trustee Garcia motioned to adjourn the meeting. Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano seconded. Motion

carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 8:21P.M.

FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Secretary/Treasurer
Vicky Lufrane

Minutes of the October 18, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4-

o



